CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the New Delivery Vehicles and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee

held on Thursday, 4th September, 2014 at Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

PRESENT

Councillor W Livesley (Chairman) Councillor K Edwards (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors G Barton, H Davenport, R Fletcher, M Hardy and B Murphy

In Attendance

Councillors D Brown, R Menlove and D Topping

Officers

- A Dunstone Waste Monitoring and Evaluation Officer
- R Kemp Strategic Commissioning
- M O'Neill Major Projects Manager
- C Simpson Director of Economic Growth & Prosperity

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

An apology for absence was received from Councillor A Martin

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest

3 DECLARATION OF PARTY WHIP

There were no declarations of a party whip

4 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME

There were no members of the public present wishing to speak

5 A NEW ENERGY SUPPLY COMPANY?: A LOCAL SOLUTION FOR LOCAL RESIDENTS

The Committee received a presentation by M O'Neill, Major Projects Manager and Councillor D Brown (on behalf of Councillor D Stockton) on the energy agenda for Cheshire East. The presentation outlined:

1. The Cheshire East Energy Framework and Low Carbon Vision centered on three key objectives:

- Affordable energy
- Growing the local energy and low carbon economy
- Independent energy for Cheshire East
- 2. The energy market:
 - There was rising fuel poverty nationally and locally. Approximately 19,000 households (11.6%) were in fuel poverty due to rising prices, volatile markets and volatile weather conditions.
 - There is an oligopoly limited competition and a perceived stranglehold by the big 6.
- 3. What are Cheshire East attempting to do?
 - Target and help alleviate fuel poverty in the Borough
 - Deliver Crewe Deep Geothermal Energy project
 - Deliver the Dry Anaerobic digestion, waste from energy project
 - Look into the possibilities of establishing an Energy ASDV
 - Investigate Energy Supply solutions, exploring procurement and delivery options, currently ongoing.
 - Progress other renewable energy projects, such as solar PV

It was noted that those on a prepaid tariff were paying significantly more for gas and electricity, Cheshire East intended to build a scheme to provide residents with an alternative cheaper offer.

The projects within the energy programme would take between 1 and 3 years to be delivered with some quick wins. The Council required partners for many of the projects as it did not have the expertise in house, several options were still being explored and may not be suitable for the Council. It was agreed that the Committee would receive an update report in 6 months time.

RESOLVED

That an update report be received in 6 months time.

6 DRAFT WASTE STRATEGY 2030

Consideration was given to the progress made in updating the Waste Strategy 2030. The Waste Strategy had been created around 19 high level objectives, grouped into the following 5 broad categories:

- Service delivery
- Waste reduction and reuse
- Recycling
- Residual waste management
- Working together

As well as consulting this Committee, the following consultation had taken place on the high level objectives:

- 2 workshops.
- Statutory 5 week consultation on the Strategic Environmental Assessment with the Environment Agency, Natural England and English Heritage.
- 4 week public consultation with residents.
- 2 focus groups with residents and interest group representatives.

It was agreed that the Committee would give consideration to the draft strategy at its meeting scheduled to be held on 2 October prior to it being submitted to Cabinet on 14 October 2014. It was noted that the strategy would highlight possible schemes for implementation but would not be prescriptive and would be open to innovative solutions.

With regard to the dry Anaerobic Digester, Members were pleased to note that waste prevention would be promoted first and energy would only be created from the waste that could not be recycled.

It was noted that due to the ever changing market, the strategy would be reviewed every 5 years. Members were supportive of the questions asked during the consultation.

RESOLVED

That the draft Waste Strategy 2013 be reported back to the Committee at its meeting scheduled to be held on 2 October 2014

7 QUARTER 1 ANSA AND ORBITAS REPORTS

Consideration was given to the first quarterly reports of Ansa and Orbitas. It was noted that the reports had yet to be received by the holding company and that as these were the first reports, comparisons could not be made. Work was still to be done on the reporting format to the Committee, the report would need to be streamlined with only relevant information provided. R Kemp reported that the report was encouraging and that the public had not noticed a change in service.

Members were concerned that Ansa had purchased 20 new vehicles which did not have the Cheshire East Logo on. R Kemp agreed to feed this point back to Ansa.

Concerns were raised regarding the amount of control the Council had over the companies, especially as one of the objectives was to trade, which may have a negative impact on Cheshire East residents. R Kemp assured the Committee that fees and charges and the quality of service were set by the Council and that there were tight controls over the companies.

Members were unclear on the meaning of the sentence on page 14 of the report. R Kemp agreed to seek clarification and report back to the Committee.

RESOLVED

1. That the report be received.

2. That the sentence on page 14 of the report be clarified and reported back to the Committee.

8 FORWARD PLAN

Consideration was given to the forward plan. It was agreed that, in future, items which fall within the remit of the Committee should be highlighted.

RESOLVED

- 1. That the forward plan be noted
- 2. In future, items which fall within the remit of the Committee be highlighted.

9 WORK PROGRAMME

Consideration was given to the work programme. It was noted that the Committee would be visiting the ANSA and Orbitas facilities in October 2014. Member requested that the possibility of moving meetings to Macclesfield be investigated.

RESOLVED

- 1. That the work programme be approved
- 2. That the possibility of moving meetings to Macclesfield be investigated.

The meeting commenced at 10.30 am and concluded at 12.45 pm

Councillor W Livesley (Chairman)